ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
February 20, 2008
8:38 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 22

Affirmng the legislative intent of state law that the Al aska
Board of Fisheries currently has the tools and authority to
all ocate fishery resources within a fishery based on vessel size
class, gear limts, trip limts, and registration areas.

- MOVED HCR 22 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 134

"An Act relating to conservation and protection of wld sal non
production in drainages affecting the Bristol Bay Fisheries
Reserve; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: HCR 22

SHORT TI TLE. REGULATI ON OF FI SHERI ES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

02/ 19/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) FSH, RES
02/ 20/ 08 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 134

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -1- February 20, 2008



SHORT TI TLE: PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

02/ 14/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 07 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 28/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
02/ 28/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 02/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
03/ 02/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 02/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 05/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
03/ 05/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 05/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

05/ 09/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
05/ 09/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

05/ 09/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 24/ 07 (H) FSH AT 4:30 PM Newhal en
09/ 24/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 24/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 25/ 07 (H) FSH AT 2: 00 PM Naknek

09/ 25/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 25/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

09/ 26/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM Dillingham
09/ 26/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

09/ 26/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 18/ 08 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124
02/ 18/ 08 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 08 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 20/ 08 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

BRI AN KANE, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi sl ati ve Legal and Research Services

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions on HCR 22.

KIP [ KEVIN] THOVET
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

ALEXUS KWACHA

Kodi ak, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 2- February 20, 2008



JULI E KAVANAUCH
Kodi ak, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

CLEM TI LLI ON

Al eut Enterprise Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

JAM E RCSS

Chi gni k Seaf ood Producers Alliance

Chi gni k, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 22.

GREG COOK, Attorney

Chi gni k Seiners Associ ation;

Chi gni k Seaf ood Producers Alliance

Chi gni k, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 22.

JOHN HI LSI NGER, Director

D vi sion of Commercial Fisheries

Department of Fish & Gane (ADF&G)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

TERESA PETERSON
Kodi ak, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 22.

BI LLY MAI NES
DI Iingham Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 134.

RON BOVERS
Di|I'li ngham Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

SAM FORTI ER

Pedro Bay Corporation

Pedro Bay, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

PATRI CK FLATLEY

Bristol Bay Alliance
Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

HEATH HI LYARD, Busi ness Devel opnment Manager

Al aska Supply Chain Integrators

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

SHARON ANDERSON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

GAIL PH LLIPS, Co-Chair

Truth About Pebbl e

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

JASON BRUNE, Executive Director

Resource Devel opnent Council for Alaska, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

NORMAN VAN VACTOR

Sno Pac Products

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

WASSI LLI E | LUTSI K

Al eknagi k, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on

Fisheries neeting to order at 8:38:37 AM Represent ati ves
Seaton, Edgnon, LeDoux, Johansen, Johnson, and WIson were
present at the call to order. Representative Holnes arrived as

the neeting was in progress.

HCR 22- REGULATI ON OF FI SHERI ES
[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 188.]

8:38: 51 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 22, Affirmng the legislative
intent of state law that the Al aska Board of Fisheries currently
has the tools and authority to allocate fishery resources wthin

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 4- February 20, 2008



a fishery based on vessel size class, gear limts, trip limts,
and registration areas.

[ Chair Seaton turned the gavel over to Representative Johansen.]
8:40: 01 AM
CHAIR SEATON reported that HCR 22 is seeking to clarify the

| egislative intent of the statutes which are currently used for
managenent gui delines by the Board of Fisheries. He opined that

gquestions wll arise as a result of Dean Anderson and M chael

Grunert v. State, Board of Fisheries and Chignik Seiners
Associ ation (Al aska Suprene Court No. S-10481). He expl ai ned
that when nmaking a determnation, the courts wll first review
the statutes, and if these are unclear, they will refer to the
| egislative intent. He stated that HCR 22 addresses the

fisheries history. He presented exanples of the guidelines the
Board of Fisheries uses to determne allocations: tine and area
cl osures, vessel size, gear limts, trip limts, and different
district and admnistrative areas. He pointed out that this
resolution is attenpting to resolve future guideline questions
t hrough interpretation of the existing statutes.

8:46:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN inquired as to the reason a nonbinding
resolution is being presented in lieu of HB 188 which has
al ready been passed out of the commttee.

CHAI R SEATON explained that HB 188 has had nunerous proposed
amendnents and alterations, so he decided to hold the bill in
the House Special Commttee on Fisheries. He stated that a
resolution which addresses the interpretation of current
regul ati ons cannot have nore pieces added to it. He offered his
belief that interpretation of the regulations is the basis for
the determnations by the Board of Fi sheri es. These
interpretations have <cone into question in Gunert. He
expressed his belief that identifying the legislative intent of
those statutes which are used for the determnation basis, wll
clarify those statutes for the courts.

8:49: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN conmented that he did not renenber any
di scussi ons of HB 188.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON, sponsor of HB 188, said that the only
change was a clarification. She expressed concern with a
resolution rather than a bill, although she allowed that a
resol uti on was better than not hing.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if this concurrent resolution, which
i s nonbinding and advisory, would be nore effective as a joint
resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opined that it is no nore difficult to
anmend a resolution than a bill.

CHAI R SEATON expl ained that both a house concurrent resolution
(HCR) and a house joint resolution (HJR) pass through both

bodi es: a joint resolution is used to address advice to the
federal government, and a concurrent resolution is wused to
address state policies. He opined that although a resolution
cannot change a judicial deci si on, it can explain the

| egislative intent, which the courts nmay consider. He expressed
his belief that the courts have clarified statutory authority in
Grunert.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON poi nted out that a resolution can al so be
anended, and thus ultimately reflects a legislative intent that
is counter to the sponsor's desires.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX questioned the possibility of changing a
resolution to a bill on the floor of the House, the Senate, or
in aconmttee.

8:56: 02 AM

BRI AN KANE, Attorney, Legislative Legal Counsel, Legislative
Legal and Research Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, relayed
that a resolution cannot be changed into a bill, although it can
be the basis for a bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noted that a court wusually exam nes
commttee records and debates on the floor to determne
| egislative intent. She asked whether a court would |ook for
the legislative intent froma resolution passed by a |egislature
t hat had not enacted the bill.

MR. KANE replied that a court is not required to |ook at any

i nt ent unless it determines this wuld help wth the
i nterpretation. He offered his belief that a court could take

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 6- February 20, 2008



into account a resolution which states that it is an
interpretation of an earlier bill's history.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON questioned the effect of a house
concurrent resolution versus a house joint resolution as an
advi sory statenent.

MR. KANE cited a concurrent resolution is an advisory from one
body urging action and a joint resolution is a statenent from
bot h bodi es, though neither is binding.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked M. Kane for his view on the
effectiveness of a resolution reflecting the current House's
opi nion, as opposed to the legislative intent when the statute
was passed.

MR. KANE responded that he would need to review the court
responses to resolutions. He expressed his belief that the
G unert decision has reflected a different interpretation of the
statute, so this legislature's opinion, which speaks nore to the
statute, mght be nore influential.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if a l|egislature has ever passed a
resolution sunmarizing legislative intent, and has the court
ever considered it.

9:02:41 AM
MR. KANE said that he would have to research this.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked if tinme and area closures were
intentionally wi thheld from HCR 22.

MR. KANE responded that he had drafted the resolution as it was
request ed. He suggested asking the Al aska Departnent of Fish &
Gane (ADF&G or the sponsor for the basis of the choice of
cat egori es.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON offered her belief that it wll be
difficult for the commttee to nake a decision on HCR 22 unti
it knows why the resolution is in the commttee. She questioned
why HB 188 was schedul ed but not discussed and suggested hearing
it to conpare with HCR 22.

9: 05: 14 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -7- February 20, 2008



CHAI R SEATON said that the resolution is in response to both the
Grunert decision and the possibility of a |legal challenge to the

hi storical determnations for fisheries. He said he would
include time and area closures if the Departnment of Law (DQL)
believes it wll be helpful. He allowed this was not neant to

be a definitive list for all the types of nanagenent tools for
t he ADF&G or the Board of Fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if HB 188 was ever discussed by
the commttee.

CHAI R SEATON expressed his belief that the committee did discuss
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON conmented that HB 188 engendered a | ot of
controversy within his constituency.

9:09: 52 AM

CHAI R SEATON opined that there were three hearings on HB 188
and a sponsor substitute was | ater offered.

KIP [KEVIN THOVET said that he supports HCR 22. He expressed
his concern with giving nore tools to the Board of Fisheries.

ALEXUS KWACHA al |l owed that he supports HCR 22, but not HB 188,
as he feels there needs to be a clear direction. He said that
he favors giving tools to the Board of Fisheries, but not
| oopholes of interpretation for the board to go in another
direction. He noted that he al so supports HB 134.

JULIE KAVANAUGH reported that she supports HCR 22 because it
affirmse the intent of the state law to provide the Board of
Fi sheries the necessary tools and authority to allocate fishery
resources. She noted that fishery resources are managed for al

Al askans and for conservation. She asked that the Board of
Fisheries only inplenment and extend those nanagenent reginmes
consistent wth active participation and individual access

rights. She said that she supports the Board of Fisheries
ability to manage these allocations. She suggested that the
comittee add | anguage to HCR 22 supporting "active

participation access" and "access only be granted to an
i ndi vi dual . "

CLEM  TILLI ON, Al eut Enterprise Corporation, related his

understanding that HCR 22 would allocate 50 percent of the state
water fishery to vessels under 60 feet, because he believes that

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 8- February 20, 2008



without this allocation Alaska wll no longer have a |ocal
resident fleet.

CHAI R SEATON poi nted out that page 2, line 18, states that it is
not necessary that 100 percent of the allocation be for one
speci fic vessel size class.

9:19: 03 AM

MR, TILLION confirnmed that he will support HCR 22 if it wll
protect the Al aska-based small boat fl eet.

JAME RGOSS, Chignik Seafood Producers Alliance, conveyed his
belief that this resolution wll do nothing to solve the
problens in the state fisheries.

9: 26: 06 AM

GREG COOK, Attorney, Chignik Seiners Association; Chignik
Seaf ood Producers Alliance, testified that in 30 years of
practicing fisheries law in Al aska, he does not recall a case in
which a court has |looked to subsequent |legislation for
interpretation of a pre-existing statute. He opined that the
effect of this resolution on any court action will be "virtually
nil;" for there to be any influence on the court, the conmttee
woul d need to adopt a statute, not a retrospective resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed concern that HB 188 woul d becone
a vehicle for the addition of the Chignik associations. She
asked if M. Cook would commit for his clients that they would
not be added to HB 188.

MR. COK said that there was nothing he "could say or do that
woul d effectively shackle any nenber of the legislature in
exercising their legislative duties.” He said he could not
commt this for his clients.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX posed a scenario in which a |egislator
requested adding the Chignik associations to HB 188. She asked
if M. Cook would go to the legislator and ask for the Chignik
associ ations not to be added to the bill.

MR. COX said that he cannot say what a client is going to ask.

9:32: 06 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE - 9- February 20, 2008



JOHN HILSINGER, Director, Division of Conmercial Fisheries,
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&S), relayed that ADF&G supports
HCR 22.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked M. Hilsinger whether ADF&G believes
HCR 22 will have any effect.

MR. HILSINGER responded that ADF&G has also questioned as to
whet her a court wll place stock in a retroactive resolution but
regardl ess, ADF&G does support the intent of the resolution.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if a legal representative for ADF&G
would conclude that the resolution acconplishes what s
necessary.

MR HLSINGER replied that the ADF& G |egal representatives
believe that HB 188 would be nore effective, but they support
HCR 22 in lieu of the bill.

TERESA PETERSON said that HCR 22 clarifies the intent, but that
she opposes HB 188 as it |eaves open the possibility for
managenent policies that are contrary to the limted entry
system She offered her belief that HB 188 allows the
possibility of absentee ownership and benefits to non-
participants of the fishery. She strongly advocated that active
participation be a requirenment for coastal fishing permts.

9:37:19 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said that she supports HCR 22. She
offered her belief that the need for this resolution highlights
an endem c structural problemin the |egislature. She observed
that all too often when a bill arrives on the House floor, an
addition is made that was not discussed in the conmttee.

9:39:26 AM

CHAI R SEATON expressed his belief that when things are unclear
in a statute, the interpretation of broad general powers is

meani ngf ul . He opined that HCR 22 provides neaningfu
interpretation to the legislature and to the Board of Fisheries.
He offered his belief that the courts will take notice and this

resolution "can get us to where we want to go."

9:41: 26 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -10- February 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON reported that HB 188 was scheduled three
times, but only heard once. She offered her belief that HCR 22
wi || be neani ngl ess.

9:42: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX noved to report HCR 22 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HCR 22 was noved out of
comittee.

HB 134- PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER

[ Represent ati ve Johansen returned the gavel to Chair Seaton.]
9:42:56 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act relating to conservation and
protection of wild salnon production in drainages affecting the
Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve; and providing for an effective
date. " [ The notion to adopt CSHB 134, Version 25-LS0381\M
Kane, 2/22/07, was |left pending at the 2/28/ 07 neeting.] [ The
notion to adopt CSHB 134, Version 25-LS0381\0O Kane, 1/22/08,
was | eft pending at the February 18, 2008 neeting.]

CHAIR SEATON rem nded the conmmttee that public testinony is
bei ng of fered on CSHB 134, Version O

9:44: 22 AM

BILLY MAINES offered his support of HB 134. He expressed his
belief that the penalties should be stronger, that incarceration
for a violation should be included in Version O

9:46: 23 AM

RON BOVERS said that he supports subsistence and the conmercia
fisheries, but that he is against HB 134 because it will violate
the rights of private property owners and deprive Al askans and
Americans of the revenue from state and federal lands in Bristol
Bay. He asked for an inventory of private |and owners,
including Native corporations, in the Bristol Bay region that
woul d be affected by Version O He then requested the creation
of a funding source for reinbursenment to those private
| andowners for the |oss of revenue.

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -11- February 20, 2008



9:47:50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON posed a scenario in which this is
determined to be a "takings" issue and the |andowners are
allowed to go to court. Wul d this be adequate to recover any
| oss, he asked.

MR. BOWERS responded that this would put the burden on the
| andowner. He said that he preferred a |arge reinbursenent fund
because many private individuals would not have the resources to
pursue the | egal process.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON offered his belief that the |andowners
woul d have a right to a portion of the permanent fund if land is
t aken i nappropriately.

CHAIR SEATON asked that M. Bowers clarify whether he was
referring to private or corporate loss of |and devel opnent
revenue.

MVR. BONERS responded that he was referring to Native
corporations and individuals, but that he did not want to draw
on the permanent fund for these payouts.

SAM FORTIER, Pedro Bay Corporation, said that Pedro Bay
Corporation is neutral on the devel opnent of Pebble M ne, but
that the corporation strongly opposes HB 134. He said that
Pedro Bay Corporation is a private |andower wth investnent
expectations for its lands, which include the nost favorable
transportation route from Pebble Mne to Cook Inlet. He
expl ai ned that even if the Pebble Mne is never built, this road
will allow easier access and reduce the costs for goods and
services to Pedro Bay. He expressed his belief that the bil
does not address sonme of the inclusions to sulfide mning
oper ati ons identified in AS 27.20. 060, nanmel y t he
transportation, communication, and utility routes that go al ong
with the mne devel opnent. Wth the adoption of HB 134, these
opportunities for devel opnent woul d no | onger exist.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if any other entities in Pedro Bay,

specifically the local village council, have offered an opinion
on HB 134.
MR. FORTIER responded that the Pedro Bay Village Council is

opposed to the construction of the mne, but that Pedro Bay

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -12- February 20, 2008



Corporation is united with other Native corporations against HB
134.

9:54: 53 AM

PATRI CK FLATLEY, Bristol Bay Alliance, communicated that his
group will provide information on hard rock mning to any of the
st akehol ders in the Bristol Bay watershed, and that the Bristol
Bay Alliance is urging the commttee to vote in support of HB
134.

9:56: 09 AM

HEATH HI LYARD, Busi ness Devel opnent Manager, Al aska Supply Chain
I ntegrators, conveyed that his conpany is opposed to all of the
versions of HB 134. He said that he wll submt witten
testinony at a later tine.

9:57:02 AM

SHARON ANDERSON reported that she is opposed to HB 134. She
of fered her belief that Version Ois slanted nore toward cl osing
the mining industry in Alaska than protecting and conserving the
anadromous fish resources. She expressed that the mning
industry is <closely nonitored and that mning regulations
require state of the art technol ogy and nonitoring.

9:58: 51 AM

GAIL PHILLIPS, Co-Chair, Truth About Pebble, nentioned that her
witten testinony will be submtted, and she rem nded that the
| egislature is sworn to protect Alaska from unwarranted |awsuits
and unlawful "takings" of |ands and resources. She expressed
her opposition to HB 134.

9:59: 58 AM

JASON BRUNE, Executive Director, Resource Developnment Council
for Al aska, Inc., announced that Version Owll have an economc
impact on all Native corporations as defined by the revenue

sharing section of the Alaska Native Clains Settlenent Act
(ANCSA), 43 U.S.C. 8§ 1606 (ANCSA 8 7) (i)(1)(A). He offered his
belief that the state and federal permtting process is already
extrenely rigorous and said that he is opposed to HB 134.

10: 01: 52 AM

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -13- February 20, 2008



NORMAN VAN VACTOR, Sno Pac Products, observed that HB 134 wil |

protect renewable resources and that he will forward his witten
conment s.

10: 03: 50 AM

WASSI LLIE ITLUTSIK stated that HB 134 wll Dblock economc

devel opment for Native corporations.

[ HB 134 was hel d over.]

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Conmittee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 10:06
a. m

HOUSE FSH COWM TTEE -14- February 20, 2008



